BRIAN P. KEMPGOVERNOR



JAY NEAL DIRECTOR

Minutes

Criminal Justice Coordinating Council
Full Council Meeting
Monday, December 06, 2021 | 10:30 AM
State Bar of Georgia and by Remote Conferencing

Attendees

The following members were present: Chairman Ron Freeman, Vice Chairwoman Sonja Fillingame, Director Omotayo Alli*, Director Mike Ayers*, Judge Nancy Bills*, Ms. Jacqueline Bunn, Chief Bruce Carlisle*, Director Cynthia Clanton*, Mr. Chris Clark*, Mr. Brian DiNapoli*, Chief Denise Downer-McKinney*, Commissioner Scotty Hancock*, Mr. Russell Lewis*, Commissioner Scott Maurer*, Assistant Director John Melvin, Commissioner Tyrone Oliver, Judge Greg Price*, Director Pete Skandalakis*, Director Chris Stallings*, Mayor Jim Thornton*, and Commissioner Timothy Ward*.

The following Criminal Justice Coordinating Council (CJCC) staff members were present: Executive Director Jay Neal, Deputy Director Steven Hatfield, Destiny Bernal*, Nathan Branscome*, Kristy Carter, Stefanie Lopez-Howard, Rachel Kilgore, Kristen Lee*, Dannielle Lewis, Joseph Lynn*, Haley McKinney*, Stephanie Mikkelsen, MiKaela Smith*, Whitney Temple*, Laura Thompson, Robert Thornton, Natalie Williams*, and Tiffany Young*.

The following guests were present: Katrina Harley*, Meghan Davidson (Attorney General's Office)*, George Ray (Nelson Mullins)*, and Taylor Jones (Council of Accountability Court Judges)*.

*Via conference call

Welcome and Call to Order, Chairman Ron Freeman

Chairman Ron Freeman called the meeting to order at 10:32 AM. Ms. Rachel Kilgore called the roll, and a quorum was confirmed. Next, Chairman Freeman called for a review of the minutes of the September 20, 2021 meeting. Assistant Director John Melvin made a motion to approve the minutes; Vice Chairman Sonja Fillingame seconded, and the motion carried.

Victim Assistance Grants Committee, Ms. Kristy Carter

FFY21 VAWA Continuation Grant Program Recommendations

Next, Ms. Kristy Carter presented Council members with the recommendations of the Victim Assistance Grants Committee. Regarding the federal fiscal year 2021 Victims of Crime

Act Funding Continuation Grant Program, Ms. Carter directed members' attention to the meeting materials provided, included here as Tab A. She reminded Council members that the Services*Training*Officers*Prosecution (STOP) Violence Against Women Act Grant program has two overarching goals: 1) To foster initiatives that develop and strengthen effective law enforcement, prosecution, adjudication, and offender monitoring strategies to combat violent crimes against women; and 2) To foster initiatives that expand and bolster services for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, and dating violence. According to the VAWA Program Guidelines, funding priorities are given to proven strategies that further the common goal of ending domestic and sexual violence. A percentage of each year's formula grant must be allocated to court services (5%), law enforcement (25%), prosecution (25%), victim services, and discretionary (15%). She highlighted the priorities of the program and presented the funding recommendations of the Committee. With no questions or comments, Judge Price motioned to approve the recommendations, totaling \$4,179,610, as detailed in Tab A of these minutes. Commissioner Oliver seconded the motion. It carried unopposed.

FFY21 SASP Continuation Grant Program Recommendations

Secondly, Ms. Carter spoke to the Sexual Assault Services Program's continuation funding. Again, she highlighted the priorities of the grant and directed members to the materials provided. The SASP Formula Grant Program, she shared, supports organizations that provide crisis intervention, advocacy, accompaniment (e.g., accompanying victims to court, medical facilities, police departments, etc.), counseling, and related assistance to: Adult, youth and child victims of sexual assault; family and household members of such victims; and those collaterally affected by the victimization, except for the perpetrator of such victimization (e.g. friends, coworkers, classmates). There were no questions or comments offered from Council members, and Vice Chairman Fillingame made a motion to approve the recommendations, totaling \$508,149, as detailed in Tab B of these minutes. Ms. Bunn seconded the motion, and it carried unanimously.

FY2020 Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding Grant Program

Lastly, Ms. Carter provided updates and recommendations regarding the FY2020 Coronavirus Emergency Grant program. She shared that the purpose of this program is to provide funding to assist eligible states, local units of government, and tribes in preventing, preparing for, and responding to the coronavirus. Victim assistance organizations, including domestic violence shelters, domestic violence community-based programs, sexual assault centers, human trafficking programs, child advocacy centers, court appointed special advocates, culturally specific programs, hospital-based violence intervention programs that address gun violence and other violent crimes, elder abuse programs, and prosecution-based victim-witness assistance programs are facing significant challenges as a result of the ongoing pandemic. This comes at a time when victim service delivery is most critical as programs are receiving increased calls for services, increased need for financial assistance for housing, childcare, employment assistance and as courts begin to reopen and address the backlog of cases caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, Ms. Carter added.

Further, she explained that victim service providers must be prepared for the likely increases in victimization rates both during and long after this pandemic. They must address the new challenges and look for innovative solutions based on a community-centered approach. The pandemic created a perfect storm of stressors that correlate with the spikes in levels of crisis calls for assistance providers have experienced in FFY19 and FFY20. The supplemental awards recommended will allow victim service agencies to prevent, prepare and respond to the coronavirus. At this time, the Victim Assistance Division has requested a 12 month no-cost

extension from BJA and is awaiting final approval, and it is the recommendation of the Victim Assistance Grants Committee to award the following (totaling \$252,754):

- 1. Award \$9,000 to the Crime Victims Advocacy Council, Inc. to meet the increased need of victims due to impacts of the pandemic.
- 2. Award \$40,000 to the Rabun County Sheriff's Office to assist with hiring a part-time Victim Service Coordinator to assist with the increased number of crime victims and meet the ongoing needs created by the challenges of the ongoing pandemic.
- 3. Award \$50,000 the District Attorney's Office of Chatham County for assistance for a prosecutor. Ms. Carter also shared that this agency did not apply for VAWA funding in 2020 and approached CJCC to determine if there were any other fund sources to assist with the increased need.
- 4. Award \$58,272 to Habersham County for a Special Victims Unit investigator. The agency did not apply for VAWA funding in 2020 and approached CJCC to determine if there were any other fund sources to assist with the increased need.
- 5. Award \$70,000 to the District Attorney's Office of Clayton County for assistance for a prosecutor. The agency did not apply for VAWA funding in 2020 and approached CJCC to determine if there were any other fund sources to assist with the increased need.
- 6. Award \$25,482 to the Tri-County Protection Agency for a part-time transporter due to the dire need for emergency services. The agency has been at capacity since July 2021 and due to its location has no access to public transportation. The community has lost its cab company and has no access to Uber or Lyft for transportation services due to impacts of the pandemic.

With the conclusion of Ms. Carter's report, Chairman Freeman opened the floor to Council members for any questions or comments regarding the information presented. Hearing none, he called for a vote on the recommendations. Director Skandalakis made a motion to approve and adopt the Committee's recommendations as presented by Ms. Carter. He noted his abstention on the awards to the Chatham County and Clayton County District Attorney's office, due to a potential conflict of interest. Assistant Director Melvin seconded the motion to accept the Committee's recommendations, and it carried unopposed.

Criminal Justice Grants Committee Recommendations, Mr. Robert Thornton

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program Funding Recommendations

Mr. Robert Thornton then presented recommendations on behalf of the Criminal Justice Grants Committee. First were recommendations regarding the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (Byrne JAG), which Chairman Freeman requested be presented and voted on collectively. With no opposition from Council Members, Mr. Thornton shared that at the September 20, 2021 full Council Meeting, the Council approved continuation allocations and awards for all drug task forces and state agencies that received Byrne JAG Program awards. Allocations were based on recipients' 2021 funding levels, and the Council authorized CJCC staff to make awards to all applicants up to the amounts that were allocated. CJCC issued a call for Byrne JAG continuation applications with a deadline of October 22, 2021. One local and one state applicant requested additional funds. Haralson County (Haralson-Paulding Drug Task Force) requested increased funding but did not provide justification related to increased coverage areas or other qualifying changes that have been previously used to grant additional funding. Additionally, the Sexual Offender Registration Review Board (SORRB) requested additional personnel funding for several programmatic objectives. At this time, Mr. Thornton shared, the

Criminal Justice Grants Committee recommends approving continuation awards to Haralson County (Haralson-Paulding Drug Task Force) and the Sexual Offender Registration Review Board but denying the increase requested by Haralson County. They also recommended tabling the increase requested by SORRB while staff works with the Governor's Office to determine priorities for the state portion of Byrne JAG funding.

Next, Mr. Thornton shared with Council members that the Byrne JAG Program requires each state to develop a comprehensive statewide 5-year strategic plan. To work towards this plan, CJCC recommends creating a criminal justice strategic planning position which, in addition to meeting the requirements of Byrne JAG, would better position CJCC to administer current funding and prepare us to administer and allocate any new funds received in the future. As criminal justice planning is an allowable programmatic activity under the Byrne JAG Program, this position would be funded with Byrne JAG programmatic funds. Funds would also be allocated to the Statistical Analysis Center to support the strategic planning function with its data needs. At this time, the Criminal Justice Grants Committee recommends approving the allocation of \$100,000 to the CJCC to support criminal justice strategic planning.

Residential Substance Abuse Treatment for State Prisoners (RSAT) Grant Program

The RSAT Formula Grant Program, Mr. Thornton reported, assists states and units of local government in developing and implementing residential substance abuse treatment programs within state and local correctional and detention facilities in which prisoners are incarcerated for a period of time sufficient to permit substance abuse treatment. Each grantee is required to provide a 25% match on the approved grant award. In an effort to more effectively manage RSAT grant funding, Mr. Thornton reported, staff sought approval from the Committee to move all current grantees to a January through December grant cycle, beginning January 2022. Given that the two state and four local subgrantees have differing grant cycles, staff will calculate each subgrantee's balance at 12/31/2021 and process awards to ensure each subgrantee has access to RSAT funds for the 2022 calendar year that are equal to their most recent annual continuation award. In addition, once award amounts are finalized for calendar year 2022, staff will develop an allocation strategy that may include releasing another competitive RFP.

The Criminal Justice Grants Committee recommends moving all RSAT awards to a calendar year grant cycle and awarding funding to each subgrantee that is equal to each subgrantee's most recent annual award less the balance of their current award at 12/31/2021.

Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant, and Substance Abuse Site-based Program

Next, Mr. Thornton shared an update regarding the FY20 Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant, and Substance Abuse Site-based Program (COSSAP). The COSSAP naloxone initiative is purposed to provide funding to cover the cost of naloxone kits as well as ongoing law enforcement training in naloxone administration, Overdose Detection Mapping Application Program implementation standards that commit to reporting, and best practices for engaging with people suffering from opioid addiction. On September 7, 2021, CJCC released a competitive Request for Proposals. Applications for the opportunity were accepted through October 8, 2021. Forty-seven applications were received from throughout the state requesting various forms of assistance. Based on the information provided in the applications, staff reviewed and recommended funding forty-five of the entities that requested funding within the parameters of the grant conditions. Staff recommended denying two requests: one was for funding not related to first responders and another receives funding through a Juvenile Justice Opioid Initiative. All entities

requested Narcan, but the majority will not require training. Those in need of training will receive it through a CJCC-GPSTC grant partnership. It is the Criminal Justice Grants Committee's recommendation to make 2020 COSSAP awards totaling \$473,332 based on the recommendations included in Tab C.

Department of Community Affairs – Accountability Courts Housing Grant

Although not an action item, Mr. Thornton gave members of the Council a brief update regarding the Accountability Courts Housing Grant. CJCC has partnered with The Council of Accountability Court Judges (CACJ) and the Department of Community Affairs (DCA) to provide housing assistance through the Emergency Solutions Grant-CARES (ESG-CV) program. Funds will be made available between January 1, 2022 and September 30, 2022. CJCC/CACJ released a Request for Applications and received 15 responses. The requested grant funding was reviewed and approved by the Funding Committee of CACJ. Mr. Thornton referred members to the list of grant awards included in their meeting materials, and shared that CJCC, CACJ and DCA are currently working to execute these awards.

Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant Program

Lastly, Mr. Thornton presented a brief update and recommendation regarding the Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant. This grant program provides evidence-based programming in the community for youth who are at a moderate to high risk to recidivate. As of November 22, 2021, he reported, grantees had expended a total of \$1,124,002. Grantees have expressed how the pandemic has affected the expenditures due to the number of program referrals. This was result of less youth being petitioned, court cases not being heard at the same pace, technology issues, and local staff turnover. After the end of quarter 2 (December 30, 2021), staff will provide members with the updated de-obligation funding amount. At this time, it is the recommendation of the Criminal Justice Grants Committee to allow current recipient counties to serve additional delinquently adjudicated youth by permitting counties to serve youth who have scored a 0 to 1 on the PDRA, if these youth are appropriate for programming. Any courts planning to service additional youth by utilizing this allowance will be required to submit a special request form. In addition, this one-time allowance would expire at the end of FY2022 unless it is extended by the Council.

At the conclusion of Mr. Thornton's report, Chairman Freeman opened the floor for any comments or questions regarding the report and recommendations. Vice Chairman Fillingame commented on the Strategic Planning Position that was being recommended and voiced that she believed it to be a good utilization of funding. She added that this position would greatly benefit the agency and was much needed. Mr. Thornton shared that this position had been modeled after the Victim Assistance Division's Project Coordinator position. With no further comments and no questions, Chairman Freeman called for a motion. Vice Chairman Fillingame moved to accept the recommendations from the Criminal Justice Grants Committee as presented by Mr. Thornton. Ms. Jacqueline Bunn seconded the motion. Chairman Freeman and Mr. Brian DiNapoli both abstained from voting on the award recommendations for their respective associations due to a potential conflict of interest. Chairman Freeman abstained regarding the award to Forsyth County, and Mr. DiNapoli abstained regarding the award to the Department of Community Affairs. The motion carried unopposed.

Deputy Director Steven Hatfield then presented recommendations on behalf of the Nominating Committee. He shared that, as required by O.C.G.A. § 35-6A-4, the Nominating Committee (Sheriff Ron Freeman [chair], Ms. Jacqueline Bunn, Ms. Sonja Fillingame, Mr. Joe Hood, and Commissioner Tyrone Oliver) met on Thursday, November 4, 2021, to elect a slate of officers to stand for election at this December 6, 2021 full Council meeting. At that time, the Committee made the following recommendations for the Council's consideration: Regarding the position of Chairman of the Council, the Committee recommended Ms. Sonja Fillingame to succeed current Chair, Sheriff Ron Freeman. Chairman Freeman opened the floor for any additional recommendations for consideration by Council members. Hearing none, he asked for a vote. Assistant Director Melvin motioned to accept the Committee's recommendation and appoint Ms. Sonja Fillingame to the position of 2022 Council Chairman. Ms. Bunn seconded the motion, and it carried unopposed.

Regarding the position of Vice Chairman of the Council, Deputy Director Hatfield shared, the Committee recommended Mr. Joe Hood to succeed current Vice Chair Sonja Fillingame. Again, Chairman Freeman opened the floor for any additional recommendations for consideration by Council members. Hearing none, he asked for a vote. Mr. DiNapoli made a motion to accept the Committee's recommendation and appoint Mr. Hood to the position of 2022 Council Vice Chairman. Ms. Bunn seconded, and the motion carried.

Old/New Business

Next, Chairman Freeman asked if there was any old or new business to be shared. Director Jay Neal reported to the Council the recent happenings of the agency and highlighted several key initiatives. Among these were the Law Enforcement Training Grant Program, the agency's application for ARPA funds, and federal VOCA funding challenges. Deputy Director Hatfield reiterated Director Neal's remarks and highlighted the staff for their constant dedication and hard work.

Adjournment

With no further business, Chairman Freeman asked if there was a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Tyrone Oliver made the motion; Assistant Director Melvin seconded, and the motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 11:17 AM.

Approval

Vice Chairman Joe Hood

Date

TAB A

Grant ID	Agency	Program Type	Federal	Match
W20-8-046	Battered Women's Shelter	Victim Services	\$28,000	\$0
W20-8-047	GA Network to End Sexual Assault (GNESA)	Victim Services	\$166,079	\$0
W20-8-048	Sexual Assault Center of NWGA	Victim Services	\$50,000	\$0
W18-8- 090/W20-8- 049	Southern Crescent SAC & CAC	Victim Services	\$50,000	\$0
W20-8-050	Stepping Stone CAC & SAC	Victim Services	\$75,000	\$0
W20-8-051	The Lily Pad SANE Center, Inc	Victim Services	\$50,425	\$0
W20-8-052	The Refuge DV Shelter, Inc	Victim Services	\$22,680	\$0
W20-8-053	The Sexual Assault Victim Advocacy Center	Victim Services	\$28,149	\$0
W19-8-069	Athens-Clarke County: ACC Clerk of Court	Discretionary: Court Services	\$45,745	\$0
W19-8-071	Conasauga Judicial Circuit: Domestic Violence Court	Court Services	\$167,224	\$0
W19-8-072	Mountain Judicial Circuit: Superior Court	Court Services	\$30,670	\$0
W20-8-001	Atlanta Victim Assistance, Inc.	Law Enforcement	\$40,000	\$0
W20-8-002	Atlanta Legal Aid Society, Inc.	Victim Services	\$121,702	\$0
W20-8-003	Butts County BOC: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$50,000	\$0
W20-8-004	Athens-Clarke County: Solicitor General's Office	Prosecution	\$70,000	\$0
W20-8-005	Fulton County BOC	Law Enforcement Training	\$25,000	\$0
W20-8-006	Fulton County BOC	Victim Services	\$67,000	\$0
W20-8-007	Atlanta Victim Assistance, Inc.	Victim Services	\$53,568	\$0
W20-8-008	Georgia Legal Services Program, Inc.	Victim Services	\$38,746	\$0
W20-8-009	Savannah-Chatham Board of Education Police Department	Law Enforcement	\$41,669	\$0
W20-8-010	Ser Familia, Inc.	Victim Services	\$94,325	\$0

W20-8-011	The Tahirih Justice Center	Victim Services	\$59,688	\$0
W20-8-012	Berrien County BOC: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$50,000	\$0
W20-8-013	Caminar Latino, Inc.	Victim Services	\$91,165	\$0
W20-8-014	Crisp County BOC: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$70,000	\$0
W20-8-015	DeKalb County Government: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$55,000	\$18,333
W20-8-017	Dougherty County BOC: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$50,000	\$0
W20-8-018	Houston County BOC: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$49,908	\$0
W20-8-019	Noor Family Services Corporation	Victim Services	\$50,000	\$0
W20-8-020	Georgia Asylum and Immigration Network	Victim Services	\$55,663	\$0
W20-8-021	Raksha, Inc.	Law Enforcement Training	\$96,903	\$0
W20-8-022	Tapestri	Law Enforcement Training	\$62,410	\$0
W20-8-023	Atlanta Center for Self Sufficiency	Victim Services	\$25,000	\$0
W20-8-024	Athens-Clarke County: Department of Police Services	Law Enforcement	\$90,000	\$0
W20-8-025	Upson County BOC: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$50,000	\$0
W20-8-026	Whitfield County BOC: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$57,251	\$0
W20-8-027	Cherokee County BOC: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$70,000	\$0
W20-8-028	Cobb County BOC: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$50,000	\$0
W20-8-029	Douglas County BOC: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$50,000	\$0
W20-8-030	Douglas County BOC: Solicitor General's Office	Prosecution	\$53,849	\$0
W20-8-031	Georgia Public Safety Training Center	Law Enforcement	\$138,990	\$0
W20-8-032	House of Globalization, Inc.	Victim Services	\$27,920	\$0
W20-8-033	Lowndes County BOC: Solicitor General's Office	Prosecution	\$50,000	\$0
W20-8-034	Oconee County BOC	Law Enforcement	\$140,000	\$0
W20-8-035	Oconee County BOC: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$67,108	\$0

W20-8-036	Paulding County BOC: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$50,000	\$0
W20-8-037	Rabun County BOC	Law Enforcement	\$46,612	\$0
W20-8-038	Wayne County BOC: District Attorney's Office	Prosecution	\$70,000	\$0
W20-8-039	Muscogee County BOC: Solicitor General's Office	Prosecution	\$50,000	\$0
W20-8-054	Macon-Bibb County	Victim Services	\$50,000	\$0
W20-8-055	DeKalb County Government: Solicitor General's Office	Prosecution	\$50,000	\$0
W19-8-073	Four Points, Inc.	Discretionary	\$13,728	\$0
W20-8-040	Georgia Coalition Against Domestic Violence	Discretionary	\$325,000	\$0
W19-8-074	Georgia Commission on Family Violence	Discretionary	\$156,125	\$0
W20-8-041	Georgia Commission on Family Violence	Discretionary	\$100,000	\$0
W19-8-075	Georgia Mountain Women's Center, Inc.	Law Enforcement Training	\$30,554	\$0
W19-8-076	N.O.A's Ark Inc./NOA	Victim Services	\$33,326	\$0
W20-8-042	Project Safe, Inc.	Victim Services	\$26,350	\$0
W20-8-043	Prosecuting Attorney's Council of GA	Prosecution	\$158,990	\$0
W20-8-044	SAFE Homes of Augusta, Inc.	Law Enforcement Training	\$30,000	\$0
W19-8-077	Support in Abusive Family Emerg.,Inc.	Law Enforcement Training	\$25,000	\$0
W20-8-045	Support in Abusive Family Emerg.,Inc.	Victim Services	\$25,000	\$0
W19-8-078	Women Moving On, Inc.	Victim Services	\$62,088	\$0
	Total		\$4,179,610	

TAB B

Agency	Program	Federal	
Amani Women Center	Sexual Assault Services	\$	50,000
Battered Women's Shelter (The Haven)	Sexual Assault Services	\$	48,255
International Women's House	Sexual Assault Services	\$	60,000
Karibu Community	Sexual Assault Services	\$	50,000
Rape Crisis Center of the Coastal Empire	Sexual Assault Services	\$	55,932
Rape Response	Sexual Assault Services	\$	59,629
The Cottage, SAC/CAC	Sexual Assault Services	\$	34,333
The Sexual Assault Victims Advocacy Center	Sexual Assault Services	\$	50,000
The Gateway Center	Sexual Assault Services	\$	50,000
The Refuge	Sexual Assault Services	\$	50,000
	Total	\$	508,149



Tab C: Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant, and Substance Abuse Site-based Program

The purpose of the FY20 Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant, and Substance Abuse Site-based Program (COSSAP) naloxone initiative is to provide funding to cover the cost of naloxone kits as well as ongoing law enforcement training in naloxone administration, Overdose Detection Mapping Application Program (ODMAP) implementation standards that commit to reporting, and best practices for engaging with people suffering from opioid addiction.

The Criminal Justice Unit released a competitive Request for Proposal (RFP) on September 7, 2021. Applications for the opportunity were accepted through October 8, 2021. The mission was to provide funding for naloxone kits, training, and assistance with implementing Overdose Detection and Mapping Application Program (ODMAP) to twenty-one jurisdictions around the state. The team received forty-seven applications from agencies statewide requesting various forms of assistance. Based on the information provided in the applications, the team reviewed the applications and provided recommendations. Based on the applications evaluated, the unit hopes to assist forty-five of the entities that have requested aid within the parameters of the grant conditions.

Jurisdiction	Туре	Narcan kits to be purchased	GPSTC Training	ODMAP Training	Requested Amount	Recommended Amount	Notes
Acworth	PD	48	no	no	\$3,600	\$3,600	
Albany State University	PD	150			\$28,000	\$0	Did not meet requirement of grant due to not first responders
Athens-Clarke	PD	100	yes	yes	\$7,500	\$7,500	
Ben Hill	SO	24	yes	yes	\$1,800	\$1,800	
Bryan	SO	120	yes	yes	\$7,500	\$7,500	
Camden	SO	150	yes	no	\$11,250	\$11,250	
Cherokee	МО	20	no	yes	\$750	\$1,500	Increased amount to meet best practice of two doses per officer

Jurisdiction	Туре	Narcan kits to be purchased	GPSTC Training	ODMAP Training	Requested Amount	Recommended Amount	Notes
Jackson	PD	20	yes	yes	\$1,500	\$1,500	
Claxton	PD	88	yes	yes	\$6,000	\$6,000	
Clayton	PD	360	no	yes	\$45,000	\$45,000	
Clinch	SO	15	yes	yes	\$1,125	\$1,125	
Cobb	SO	400	yes	yes	\$16,000	\$16,000	
Columbia BOE	PD	64	no	yes	\$4,800	\$0	Denied due to being an OAYI grant recipient
DeKalb	PD	575	no	yes	\$32,000	\$32,000	
Dougherty	EMS	144	yes	no	\$16,692	\$16,692	
Emanuel	SO	48	yes	no	\$3,600	\$3,600	
Forsyth	SO	195	yes	yes	\$14,625	\$14,625	
Fulton	DA	160	yes	yes	\$12,000	\$7,625	Decreased amount due to ensure amount for currently employed investigators
Fulton	PD	75	no	yes	\$5,625	\$5,625	
Fulton BOE	PD	103	OAYI	yes	\$14,999	\$14,999	
GA DNR	State PD	440	no	yes	\$16,500	\$16,500	
Gainesville	PD	150	no	yes	\$5,625	\$5,625	
GA Piedmont Technical	PD	20	yes	no	\$1,300	\$1,300	
Gilmer	SO	100	no	no	\$8,279	\$8,279	
Glynn	PD	133	no	yes	\$16,625	\$16,625	
GSU	PD	20	no	yes	\$1,500	\$1,500	
Habersham	SO	60	unknown	unknown	\$1,900	\$0	Not enough information was provided on application to award grantee. In addition, requested funding for injectable Narcan
Henry	SO	150	yes	yes	\$21,000	\$21,000	
Henry	PD	336	yes	yes	\$25,200	\$25,200	
Jackson	SO	164	yes	yes	\$12,300	\$12,300	

Jurisdiction	Туре	Narcan kits to be purchased	GPSTC Training	ODMAP Training	Requested Amount	Recommended Amount	Notes
Jasper	SO	90	no	yes	\$6,750	\$6,750	
Kennesaw	PD	46	no	no	\$3,500	\$3,500	
Monroe	SO	125	yes	yes	\$13,750	\$13,750	
Montgomery	SO	25	yes	no	\$1,875	\$1,875	
Morgan	SO	31	no	yes	\$2,325	\$2,325	
Newton	SO	65	no	yes	\$8,000	\$5,875	Unable to fund PPE requested
Paulding	SO	224	yes	no	\$20,612	\$20,612	
Pickens	SO	100	no	yes	\$12,500	\$12,500	
Polk	PD	96	yes	yes	\$7,200	\$7,200	
Rockdale	SO	200*	no	no	\$19,450	\$17,500	Unable to fund pouches requested
Sandy Springs	PD	384	no	yes	\$14,400	\$14,400	
Savannah- Chatham	PD	333	no	No	\$30,000	\$25,000	Unable to fund engagement activities and public awareness requested
South Georgia State College	PD	30*	no	no	\$1,500	\$1,500	
Statesboro	PD	156	no	yes	\$41,184	\$19,500	Pricing for Narcan was inconsistent with standard rate
Tifton	PD	60	no	yes	\$4,500	\$4,500	
Turner	SO	25	yes	yes	\$1,875	\$1,875	
Walker	SO	140*	no	yes	\$10,000	\$10,000	
	Total					\$474,932	

^{*}In addition, funding for naloxone training was requested.

Summary	
Funding Available	\$514,300
Funding Requested	\$544,016
Funding Recommended	\$473,332
Remaining	\$40,968